the Detailed Statement of Lease Sale, with copies available at the BLM Montana State Office (see ADDRESSES). Documents in case file NDM 111186 are available for public inspection at the BLM Montana State Office Public Room.

(Authority: 43 CFR 3422.3-2)

### Tessa L. Wallace,

Branch Chief, Solid Minerals, BLM Montana/ Dakotas.

[FR Doc. 2025–14721 Filed 8–1–25; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4331–20–P

# INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1356 (Remand)]

Certain Dermatological Treatment Devices and Components Thereof; Notice of Commission Determination Not To Review an Initial Determination Terminating the Remand Proceedings Based on Settlement; Termination of Investigation

**AGENCY:** U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission ("Commission") has determined not to review an initial determination ("ID") (Order No. 71) of the presiding administrative law judge ("ALJ"), granting an unopposed motion to terminate the remand proceedings. The investigation is terminated in its entirety.

### FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Panyin A. Hughes, Office of the General Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 205–3042. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at https://www.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on April 6, 2023, based on a complaint filed by Serendia, LLC of Lake Forest, California ("Serendia"). 88 FR 20551–52 (Apr. 6, 2023). The complaint, as supplemented, alleged violations of

section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain dermatological treatment devices and components thereof by reason of infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 9,480,836 ("the '836 patent"); U.S. Patent No. 9,320,536 ("the 536 patent''); U.S. Patent No. 9,775,774 ("the 7774 patent"); U.S. Patent No. 10,869,812 ("the '812 patent"); and U.S. Patent No. 11,406,444 ("the '444 patent"). Id. at 20551. The complaint further alleged that a domestic industry exists. Id. The Commission's notice of investigation named as respondents Sung Hwan E&B Co., LTD. d/b/a SHEnB Co. LTD of Seoul, Republic of Korea; Aesthetics Biomedical, Inc. of Phoenix, Arizona; Cartessa Aesthetics, LLC of Melville, New York; Lutronic Corporation of Goyang-si, Republic of Korea; Lutronic Aesthetics, Inc., also known as Lutronic, Inc. of Billerica, Massachusetts; Lutronic, LLC of Billerica, Massachusetts; Ilooda, Co., Ltd. of Anyang-si, Republic of Korea; Cutera, Inc. of Brisbane, California; Rohrer Aesthetics, LLC of Homewood, Alabama; Rohrer Aesthetics, Inc. of Homewood, Alabama; Jeisys Medical Inc. of Seoul, Republic of Korea; Cynosure, LLC of Westford, Massachusetts; and EndyMed Medical Ltd. of Caesarea, Israel; EndvMed Medical, Ltd. of New York, New York; and EndyMed Medical, Inc. of Freehold, New Jersey (together, "EndyMed"). Id. at 20552. The Office of Unfair Import Investigations ("OUII") is also participating in the investigation. Id.

The Commission subsequently terminated the investigation as to all respondents except for EndyMed. See Order No. 26 (Sept. 18, 2023), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Oct. 16, 2023); Order No. 38 (Oct. 27, 2023), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Nov. 20, 2023); Order No. 45 (Nov. 15, 2023), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Dec. 15, 2023); Order No. 47 (Nov. 20, 2023), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Dec. 15, 2023); Order No. 53 (Apr. 11, 2024), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (May 8, 2024); Order No. 51 (Dec. 13, 2023), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Jan. 10, 2024); Order No. 64 (Dec.18, 2024), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Jan. 17, 2025).

The ALJ held a *Markman* hearing on July 13, 2023, and issued a *Markman* Order on October 25, 2023, construing certain disputed claim terms. Order No. 35 (Oct. 25, 2023). The ALJ found the pending claims of the '444 patent, claims 4, 6, and 7, indefinite in the *Markman* Order and did not consider

those claims any further in the Investigation. *Markman* (Order No. 35) at 62.

On December 19, 2024, the ALJ issued the final ID finding a violation of section 337 as to claims 1, 9, and 22 of the '836 patent; claims 11 and 16 of the '536 patent; claim 14 of the '774 patent; and claims 5, 13, and 18 of the '812 patent by EndyMed. On February 28, 2025, the Commission determined to review the final ID in part, including the ID's finding that the asserted claims of the '444 patent are invalid for indefiniteness. 90 FR 11433–36 (Mar. 6, 2023).

On June 3, 2025, the Commission determined that EndyMed violated section 337 by reason of importation and sale of articles that infringe asserted claims 1, 9, and 22 of the '836 patent; claims 11 and 16 of the '536 patent; claim 14 of the '774 patent; and claims 5, 13, and 18 of the '812 patent. 90 FR 24292–94 (June 9, 2025). For remedy, the Commission issued a limited exclusion order prohibiting further importation of infringing products and cease and desist orders against EndyMed. *Id.* at 24294.

As to the '444 patent, the Commission determined to reverse and remand the ID's indefiniteness finding for further proceedings consistent with the Commission's opinion and remand order. *Id.* 

On July 1, 2025, Serendia and EndyMed filed a joint motion to terminate the remand proceedings based upon settlement. On July 8, 2025, OUII filed a response in support of the motion.

On July 9, 2025, the ALJ issued the subject ID (Order No. 71) granting the motion. The ID noted that "under Commission Rule 210.21(a)(2), any party may move at any time to terminate an investigation in-whole or in-part with respect to any or all respondents on the basis of a settlement, a license, or other agreement as provided in Commission Rule 210.21(b)." ID at 1–2 (citing 19 CFR 210.21(a)(2)). The ID further noted that pursuant to Commission Rule 210.21(b), termination of an investigation with respect to one or more respondents on the basis of a license or other settlement agreement requires the motion to contain: (i) the license agreement or other settlement agreements; (ii) any supplemental agreements; (iii) any documents referenced in the motion or attached agreements; and (iv) a statement that there are no other agreements, written or oral, express or implied between the parties concerning the subject matter of the investigation. Id. at 2 (citing 19 CFR 210.21(b)). The ID granted the

unopposed motion, finding that it complies with the Commission Rules. *Id.* at 3–5. None of the parties petitioned for review of the subject ID.

The Commission has determined not to review the subject ID. The remand proceedings are hereby terminated. The Commission hereby terminates the investigation in its entirety.

The Commission vote for this determination took place on July 30, 2025. The authority for the Commission's determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part 210 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission. Issued: July 30, 2025.

#### Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission. [FR Doc. 2025–14655 Filed 8–1–25; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

## INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation Nos. 701-TA-776 and 731-TA-1761 (Preliminary)]

Unwrought Palladium From Russia; Institution of Antidumping and Countervailing Duty Investigations and Scheduling of Preliminary Phase Investigations

**AGENCY:** United States International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

**SUMMARY:** The Commission hereby gives notice of the institution of investigations and commencement of preliminary phase antidumping and countervailing duty investigation Nos. 701-TA-776 and 731-TA-1761 (Preliminary) pursuant to the Tariff Act of 1930 to determine whether there is a reasonable indication that an industry in the United States is materially injured or threatened with material injury, or the establishment of an industry in the United States is materially retarded, by reason of imports of unwrought palladium from Russia, provided for in subheading 7110.21.00 of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States, that are alleged to be sold in the United States at less than fair value and alleged to be subsidized by the government of Russia. Unless the Department of Commerce ("Commerce") extends the time for initiation, the Commission must reach a preliminary determination in antidumping and countervailing duty investigations in 45 days, or in this case by September 15,

2025. The Commission's views must be transmitted to Commerce within five business days thereafter, or by September 22, 2025.

**DATES:** July 30, 2025.

## FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Nitin Joshi ((202) 708-1669), Office of Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436. Hearingimpaired persons can obtain information on this matter by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202-205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202-205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server (https:// www.usitc.gov). The public record for these investigations may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov.

## SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background.—These investigations are being instituted, pursuant to sections 703(a) and 733(a) of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1671b(a) and 1673b(a)), in response to a petition filed on July 30, 2025, by Stillwater Mining Company and the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Industrial and Services Workers International Union, AFL—CIO, CLC.

For further information concerning the conduct of these investigations and rules of general application, consult the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, part 201, subparts A and B (19 CFR part 201), and part 207, subparts A and B (19 CFR part 207).

Participation in the investigations and public service list.—Persons (other than petitioners) wishing to participate in the investigations as parties must file an entry of appearance with the Secretary to the Commission, as provided in §§ 201.11 and 207.10 of the Commission's rules, not later than seven days after publication of this notice in the **Federal Register**. Industrial users and (if the merchandise under investigation is sold at the retail level) representative consumer organizations have the right to appear as parties in Commission antidumping duty and countervailing duty investigations. The Secretary will prepare a public service list containing the names and addresses of all persons, or their representatives, who are parties to these investigations upon the expiration of the period for filing entries of appearance.

Limited disclosure of business proprietary information (BPI) under an administrative protective order (APO) and BPI service list.—Pursuant to § 207.7(a) of the Commission's rules, the Secretary will make BPI gathered in these investigations available to authorized applicants representing interested parties (as defined in 19 U.S.C. 1677(9)) who are parties to the investigations under the APO issued in the investigations, provided that the application is made not later than seven days after the publication of this notice in the **Federal Register**. A separate service list will be maintained by the Secretary for those parties authorized to receive BPI under the APO.

Conference.—The Office of Investigations will hold a staff conference in connection with the preliminary phase of these investigations beginning at 9:30 a.m. on Wednesday, August 20, 2025. Requests to appear at the conference should be emailed to preliminary conferences@ usitc.gov (DO NOT FILE ON EDIS) on or before noon on Monday, August 18, 2025. Please provide an email address for each conference participant in the email. Information on conference procedures, format, and participation, including guidance for requests to appear as a witness via videoconference, will be available on the Commission's Public Calendar (Calendar (USITC) | United States International Trade Commission). A nonparty who has testimony that may aid the Commission's deliberations may request permission to participate by submitting a short statement.

Please note the Secretary's Office will accept only electronic filings during this time. Filings must be made through the Commission's Electronic Document Information System (EDIS, https://edis.usitc.gov). No in-person paper-based filings or paper copies of any electronic filings will be accepted until further notice.

Written submissions.—As provided in §§ 201.8 and 207.15 of the Commission's rules, any person may submit to the Commission on or before 5:15 p.m. on August 25, 2025, a written brief containing information and arguments pertinent to the subject matter of the investigations. Parties shall file written testimony and supplementary material in connection with their presentation at the conference no later than 4:00 p.m. on August 18, 2025. All written submissions must conform with the provisions of § 201.8 of the Commission's rules; any submissions that contain BPI must also conform with the requirements of §§ 201.6, 207.3, and 207.7 of the Commission's rules. The Commission's Handbook on Filing Procedures, available on the Commission's website